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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of

Greeneffect Waste Management Limited (formetly known as A2Z Green Waste Management Limited)

Gurugram

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of Greeneffect Waste
Management Limited (formerly known as A2Z Green Waste Management Limited) (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for

the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by The Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so requited and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India includinig the Ind AS, of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 March 2023, and its financial petrformance (including other comprehensive income) and
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further desctribed in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAT’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the financial year ended 31* March, 2023. These matters
wete addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We do not have any matters to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We have
fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditot’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone Ind
AS financial statements section of out repott. Accordingly, our audit included the petformance of
procedures designed to tespond to our assessment of the risks of material misg of the standalone

address the matters, if any, provide the basis for our audit opinion on thef
AS financial statements.




M P GUPTA & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

B-3/59, 3R FLOOR, SECTOR 6, ROHINI, NEW DELHI — 110085

Mobile No : 9717276191 Email -ID : mpg_ca2006@yahoo.co.in

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the mattets stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the prepatration of these Standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial petformance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereundet. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting recotds in accordance with the provisions of the Act;
safeguarding the assets of the Company; preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
pteparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etrot.

In ptepating the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concetn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease opetations, or has no tealistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial repotting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assutrance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or etror and are consideted matetial if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements.

As patt of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the tisks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The tisk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from etror, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control televant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013,
we ate also responsible for expressing our opinion on whethet the company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

and related disclosures made by management.
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* Conclude on the approptiateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists telated to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we ate requited to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements ot, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions ate based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s repott.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually ot in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in @
planning the scope of our audit wotk and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, telated
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
wete of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s repott unless law or regulation
ptecludes public disclosure about the matter ot when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in out report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Repott on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India after consultation with the National Financial Reporting Authority (NFRA)
constituted under section 132 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure I, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Ordet.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessaty for the purpose of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been ke
as it appears from our examination of those books;
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The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, the
statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant tules issued thereunder;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023 and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the ditectors is disqualified as on 31 March
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure II”; and

In our opinion, the managetial remuneration for the year ended 31 March, 2023 has been paid /

provided by the company to its ditectors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Act.

h. with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditot’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company does have pending litigations which would impact its financial position as per the
note given in its Standalone Ind AS financial statements;

. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

1il. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (2) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
ot in any other person or entity, including foreign entities(“Intermediaries”), with the
undetstanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other petsons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by ot on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaties”) or provide any guarantee, security of the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that ,to the best of its knowledge and belicf, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no fund shave been treccived by the Company from any
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writitlg or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lender
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaties”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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(©) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

For M P Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Regn. Ney 027523N

Date: 18.05.2023
Place: Gurugram
UDIN: 23509623BGXMRB2663
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Annexure-I

Referred to in paragraph (1) Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our repott of even date on
the standalone financial statement of Greeneffect Waste Management Limited (formetly known as A2Z Green
Waste Management Limited) (‘the Company’) for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the Standalone
Ind AS financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations
given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the notmal coutse of audit, we repott
that:

() (a) (A)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) As per the physical verification program, Propetty, Plant and Equipment have been physically vetified by
the management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such vetification. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification of the fixed assets is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets:

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the company, the company has constructed building on the land provided and
owned by the Kanpur Municipal Corporation, so the title deeds are not in the name of the
company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including Right of Use assets)
and intangible assets during the year.

(€) According to the information and explanations given to us and records provided, no proceedings have
been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023 for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder.

() (@) As per the physical verification program, the inventories were physically verified duting the year by the
Management at reasonable intervals (except for stock lying with the third parties and in transit which
have been verified based on confirmations). In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is
appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. No discrepancics
of 10% ot more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical vetification
of inventories when compated with books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company had been sanctioned working
capital limits & term loans from multiple banks/financial institutions in excess of Rs. 5 crores in earlier
years. As the accounts has turned NPA before FY 2018-19, the company is not submitting any
monthly/quartetly returns with any bank. So, we are unable to comment whether they are in agteement
with the unaudited financial statements or not.

(iii) (2) The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security, and granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties during the year, and hence reporting under clause (iii) of the Order
is not applicable.
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(b)

©

@

(©

®

(Rs. in lacs)
Loans Advances in Guarantees | Security
nature of loans

A. Aggregate amount granted/
| provided during the yeat:

- Subsidiaries = - -
- Joint Ventutes - - - -
- Associates - - - -
- Others - - - -

B. Balance outstanding as at
balance sheet date in respect of
above cases:*

- Subsidiaries - . - .
- Jomnt Ventures - - - =
- Associates - - - -
- Othets - . - -
* Gross amounts, without considering provisions made

The investments made, guarantees provided, secutity given and the terms and conditions of the grant of
all the above-mentioned loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided, during the
year are, in our opinion, prima facie, are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

The loans granted or advances in the nature of loans provided in eatlier years ate payable on demand.
During the year the Company has not demanded such loan or advances in the nature of loan. Having
regard to the fact that the repayment of principal or interest has not been demanded by the Company, in
out opinion the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are regular.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed, in respect of loans granted and advances in the nature of loans provided by the
Company, no demand has been raised for repayment of principal or interest thereon. Having regard to
the fact that the repayment of principal or interest has not been demanded by the Company, in our
opinion there are no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.
No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year,
has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the
same parties.
According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed,
during the year the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either
tepayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence,
reporting under clause (iif)(f) is not applicable.

(Rs. 1n lacs)
All Parties | Promoters | Related Parties

Aggregate of loans/advances in nature of
loans

- Repayable on demand (A) - E
- Agreement does not specify any terms or
period of repayment (B)

Total (A+B) - -
Percentage of loans/advances in nature of | 100% 100%
loans to the total loans
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(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with tespect to the loans and
investments made.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vi)  To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not specified maintenance
of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s
products/ services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

(vii) (a) The Company is generally not regular in depositing with the approptiate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
material statutory dues, as applicable. Undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof which were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they become
payable are as follows:

(viti)

Nature of statute Nature of | Amount Period to which the amount relates
dues (Rs. 1n lacs)

Income Tax Act, 1961 TDS 406.04 July 13 to September 22

Value Added Tax Act Sales Tax 12.79 October 13 to September 21

EPF Act EPF 15.22 October 13 to September 22

LWF Act LWF 1221 December 10 to September 2022

GST Act 2017 GST 12.57 July 13 to September 22

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us thete ate no dues in respect of Goods &

Service tax, income-tax, sales-tax, setvice tax, duty of excise, value added tax and cess that have not been
deposited with the appropriate authotities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
tecords of the Company, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)
during the year.

(ix) (a)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, the Company has defaulted in repayment of dues to financial
institution, bank or debentutre-holders as detailed below:
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Nature of| Name of Lender Amount not paid Whether No. of days | Remarks
borrowing on due date Principal or of delay or
(Rs. in crore) Interest* unpaid (NPA
since)
Term Loan | Yes Bank 28.50 Principal 29-09-2015 | NPA
IDBI Bank 3.37 Principal 29-03-2014 | NPA
AXIS Bank 34.29 Principal 29-10-2014 | NPA

*The company has not made any provision for interest on NPA loans from the FY 2018-19 onwards. Yes
Bank and Axis Bank has issued Notice u/s 13(2) of SARFAESI Act, 2002 dated 06.09.2019 and 17.12.2019
for Rs. 41.51 crore (Principal Rs. 28.50 crore + Interest Rs. 13.01 crore upto 16.08.2019) and Rs. 65.40 crore
(Ledger balance as per bank (including interest upto 31.12.2014) Rs. 36.39 crore plus unapplied interest and
penal interest of Rs. 29.01 crore upto 30.11.2019) respectively. The Company has also filed a Writ Petition
with Hon’ble Allahabad High Court. on dated 06.03.2020. The company had entered into OTS (One time
settlement) with Standard Chartered Bank during the FY 2017-18 & Barclays Bank during the FY 2020-21
and both these OTS has been paid during the current year under audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or
tinancial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the terms loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans had
been taken.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the funds raised on short term basis have not been utilized for long
term purposes.

() According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(x)(a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instrument). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order are not
applicable.

(b)During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partly or optionally convertible) and hence reporting under
clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a)According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of
our audit.

(b)To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under tule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there wete no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year which remained unattended by the competent authorities.
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(xif)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not a
Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the order is not applicable.

(xii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related patties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the
Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)(a)According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has an intetnal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b)The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under
audit have been considered by us.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with its directors. Accordingly, provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.

(xvi) The Company is not requited to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act
1934 and hence reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Otrder is not applicable. The Group
does not have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order
is not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and Rs.
1138.44 in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xvii)) Thete has been no resignation of the statutory auditots of the Company during the year.

(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities (as petr the payment schedule/ re-scheduled), other information
accompanying the standalone financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Ditrectors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a petiod of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company and/ or certificate
with respect to meeting financial obligations by the Company as and when they fall due. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assutance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)(@)The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, ot turnover of rupees one
thousand crore ot more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during the immediately preceding
financial year and hence, provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Otder is not applicable for the year.
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(b) Provisions of the Act relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) does not apply to the company
and accordingly reporting under clause (xx)(b) of the Otder is not applicable.

(xxi) According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO teportts issued by the
auditors of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, provided to us by the
Management of the Company and based on the identification of matters of qualifications or adverse
temarks in their CARO reports by the respective component auditots and provided to us, we report that

the auditors of such companies have not reported any qualifications or adverse remarks in their CARO
report.

For M P Gupta & Associates
Chattered Accountants
Regn. Ne, 027523N

Date: 18.05.2023
Place: Gurugram
UDIN: 23509623BGXMRB2663
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Annexure - II to the Auditors’ Report
(Refetred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report
to the members of the company of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Greeneffect Waste Management
Limited (formerly known as A27Z Waste Management Limited) (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in
conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting critetia established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAT’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuting the ordetly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAT and deemed to be presctibed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedutes to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.




| M P GUPTA & ASSOCIATES
" CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

B-3/59, 3R FLOOR, SECTOR 6, ROHINI, NEW DELHI - 110085

Mobile No : 9717276191 Email -ID : mpg_ca2006@yahoo.co.in

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial repotting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the prepatration of standalone financial statements
tor external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting ptinciples. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessaty to permit preparation
of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention ot timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
standalone financial statements

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the nherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to etror or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial repotting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31
March 2023, based on the intetnal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chattered Accountants of India.

For M P Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date: 18.05.2023
Place: Gurugram
UDIN: 23509623BGXMRB2663




“iiandaldne Balance Sheot as at March 31, 2023

\
{Unic.¥ ofhenwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)
~

fissets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Financial assets

[nvestments

Othcer financial asscts

Non-current tax asscts (nct)
Other non-current asscts

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets
"I'rade receivables
Cash and cash cquivalents
Other bank balances
Loans

Other financial asscts
Other current asscts

Equity and liabilities
Equity

IZquity share capital
Other equity

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

[Financial liabilitics
Borrowings

Other non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Tinancial liabilitics
Borrowings

Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

‘T'otal outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Other financial liabilitics
Qther current liabilities

Provisions

‘The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

For M P Gupta & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
Repn, 127525N

o

Mata Prasad
Propricter
M.No. 509623

Place : Gurugram
Date: 18.05. 2023
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10
11
12
13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

21
22
23

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Surender Singh
Director
)JN 7713 T0H)

Jie d(r Yadav

Company Su:rn.tary

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
5,021.87 5,946.08
14,831.89 14,831.89
7,567.80 7,217.04
357.22 357.22
655.17 655.74
1,385.55 1,383.37
29,819.50 30,391.34
631.68 631.68
2,464.95 2,848.91
20.95 20.23
24.21 24.21
10,755.38 10,433.63
1,476.96 1,476.96
5.81 5.81
15,379.93 15,441.42
45,199.43 45,832.76
2,275.00 2,275.00
(22,562.37) (23,998.06)
(20,287.37) (21,723.06)
11,428.26 10,002.85
3,831.48 3,797.43
15,259.74 13,800.28
18,370.26 18,851.58
23.28 30.24
3,571.99 3,558.41
27,573.69 30,506.87
687.60 808.04
0.25 0.39
50,227.06 53,755.54
45,199.43 45,832.76
Deepak
Director

v
i
LV
"
ﬂ* mju Kumar
el Finaneml Officer

(DIN: 09456137)

Naveen Agarwal
Chief Executive Officer



Stanaalone, statemeit of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Revenue
Other income 24 3,913.50 854.98
Total income 3,913.50 854.98
Expenses
Cost of material comsumed 25
Changes in inventories of Finished goods, Stock -in- trade and 2
Work- in- progress
Employce benefit expenses 27 18.16 24.70
Finance costs 28 1,490.96 1,925.75
Depreciation and amortisation expensc 29 924.21 925.17
Other expenses 30 38.57 42.97
Total expenses 2,471.90 2,918.59
Profit / (loss) before exceptional and tax 1,441.60 (2,063.61)
Exceptional items - -
Profit / (loss) before tax 1,441.60 (2,063.61)
Tax expense 31
Current tax -
Deferred tax
Profit/ (loss) for the year 1,441.60 (2,063.01)
Other comprehensive income
A DItems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss (5.91) (0.84)

iIncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profic or loss
B DTtems that will be reclassified to profit or loss

if)Income tax relating to items that will be - -
Total other comprehensive income (5.91) 0.84)
Total comprehensive income 1,435.69 (2,064.45)
Profit / (loss) eatnings per equity share : 32
Basic (in INR) 6.34 (9.07)
Diluted (in INR) 6.34 (9.07)

"The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date

For M P Gupta & Associates.
Chattered Accountants
Repn, No. 027523N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Proprieter |7 | FRN 027523N
M.No. 50962% k

Place : Gurugram
Date: 18.05.2023

ogm/\d’l :

(¢ Deainhi
Surender Singh | -__t. L
Director '
(DIN: 07713768) (DIN: 09456137)

¢ J AL
W

Jiee Sanju Kumar

er Yadav (& Naveerf Agarwal
Company Secretary  «Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Officer



Greeneffect Waste Management Limited
Standalone cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit / (loss) before tax 1,441.60 (2,063.61)
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 924.21 925.17
Interest expense 1,490.96 1,925.75
Liability written back (3,442.14) (12.90)
Interest income (471.36) (842.08)
LER for SWM land leases 34.05 35.67
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes (22.68) (31.99)
Changes in working capital:
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
“I'rade reccivables 383.96
Loans (321.76) 375.88
Jiinancial asset - 1.10
Other assets (2.18) (13.13)
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
‘I'rade payable 6.62 92,79
Other financial liability 608.96 2,156.78
Other current liability (120.45) 47.06
Provision (6.06) 0.94)
526.42 2,627.52
Current taxes paid (net of refunds) 0.57 (47.85)
Net cash generated from operating activities 526.99 2,579.67
B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets (including capital work in progress) . (0.01)
Interest received 0.13 53.13
Net cash from / (used in) investing activities 120.61 53.13
C Cash flow from financing activities
Procecds from long term borrowings (100.00) (3.62)
Repayment of short term borrowings (net) (481.33) (2,462.76)
[nterest paid (65.55) (161.15)
Net cash used in from financing activities (646.88) (2,627.53)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ( A+B+C) 0.72 5.28
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 20.23 14.96
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 20.95 20.23
Components of cash and cash equivalents As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2022
Cash on hand 0.81 0.81
Balances with banks
- 1 current account 20.14 19.42
20.95 20.23
This is the cash flow statement as referred to in our report of even date.
For M P Gupta & Associates For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Regn. NGTH27523N -
QS,\» ol 2 /&
Mata Prasud Surender Singh - Deepak
Proprieter IMrector ".I I | Director
M.No. 508621 % [\, No. 509623 (DIN: YT 13768) N ot y (DIN: 09456137
\ 1§ad \‘,\)“'&
(}C -~ . N
Place : Ciurugrar Jivender Yadav ¢ eriu Kumar NaveenAgarwal
Date: 18.05.2023 Company Secretary “hief Financial Officer  Chiel Executive COfficer

/



Sitlandalone 'statement of chdnges in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Unless othexwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs )

A. Equity share capital:

Note Number of shares Amount
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity Shares of INR 10 each
Balance as at April 1, 2022 15 22,750,000 2,275.00
Changes in equity share capital . =
Balance as at March 31, 2023 22,750,000 2,275.00
B. Other equity:
Equity portion : . i
(:lf p?;tgmce SARiIEDiton Reserve and Surplus ;::-::Li:l:ll‘:yto equity
shares O holders
ESOP Reserve Retained earnings
Balance as at April 1, 2022 13,197.61 1,461.03 10.45 (38,667.15) (23,998.06)
Profit / (Loss) for the period - 1,441.60 1,441.60
Other comprehensive income (5.91) (5.91)
Total comprehensive income - - - 1,435.69 1,435.69
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners: -
Received during the period against issue under 1'SOP - - . =
Balance as at March 31, 2023 13,197.61 1,461.03 10.45 (37,231.46) (22,562.36)

This is the statement of change in equity referred to in our report of even date

For M P Gupta & Associates.
Chartered Accountants

Mata Prasad
Proprieter
M.No. 5096

)

Place : Gurugram
Date: 18.05.2023

St

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Surender Singh
Director
(DIN: 07713768)

‘ CLL\@\J/

der Yadav

J

.rP
\L)’.

Omeju Kumar

5l ) / Director
(DIN: 09456137)

Naveen Agarwal

Company Sceretary Chiel inancial Officer  Chief Executive Officer




Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 1 : Nature of operations

Greeneffect Waste Management Limited(the ‘Company’) was the subsidiary of A2Z Infra Fngincering Limited till 12-March-2019. It was incorporated at National
Capital Territory of Delhi on March 22, 2007 for providing waste management scrvices.

The Company’s main business primarily includes(f) door to door collection, (i) intcrmediate transportation, (iif) processing of waste to — a) compost, b) vermin
compost, ¢) plastic recyclable, d) eco bricks and refuse derived fucl (RIDF?), and iv) Engincering sanitary landfill.

Note 2 : Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of accounting:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules,
2006 (as amended) and other relavent provisions of the Act.

In 2016 the Company has not applied any new accounting policies or made other retrospective changes that have a material effect on the statement of financial
position as at 1 April 2015. Accordingly, the Company is not required to present a third statement of financial position as at that date. However, the Company has
clected to provide this additional comparative information together with related notes as permitted by Ind AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements”.

2.2 Foreign currency transactions:

"The Company's financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

liorcign currency transactions ate translated into the functional currency of the Company, using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions (spot
exchange ratc).

liorcign exchange gains and losses resulting from the sctlement of such transactions and from the remeasurement of monetary items denominated in forcign
currency at year-cnd exchange rates are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetaty items arc not retranslated at year-end and are measured at historical cost (translated using the exchange rates at the transaction date), except for non
monctary items measured at fair value which arc translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined.

Jixchange differences arising on the scttlement of monctary items or on translating monctary items at rates different from those at which they were translated on
initial recognition during the period or in previous financial statements shall be recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arisc. When
a gain or loss on a non-monctaty item is recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange component of that gain or loss shall be recognised in other
comprehensive income. Converscly, when a gain or loss on a non-monctary item is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, any exchange component of that
gain or loss shall be recognised in the Statement of Profit and ILoss.

"T'he financial statements of an integral foreign operation arc translated as if the transactions of the foreign operation have been those of the Company itsclf.

2.3 Segment reporting

2.3.1 Business segments

Operating Scgments are identified based on financial information that is regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (CODM) in deciding how to
allocate resources and in assessing performance. ‘The primary reporting of the Company has been performed on the basis of business segment. Segments have been
identified and reported based on the nature of the products, the risks and returns, the organization structure and the internal financial reporting systems. “The
Company is operating into following segments — (i) Power generation projects (PGP and (i) Others represents trading of goods.

2.4 Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized on transfer of control of promised goods or services to a customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company is expected to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that
performance obligation. This variable consideration is estimated based on the expected value of outflow. Revenue (net of variable consideration) is recognized only
to the extent that it is highly probable that the amount will not be subject to significant reversal when uncertainty relating to its recognition is resolved

2.4.1 Interest income:
Interest is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

2.4.2 Other income; ek Vg
Other income is recognised when no significant uncertainty as to its determination or realisation exists,




Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

2.5 Borrowing costs

Borrowings arc initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowing are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

General and specific borrowing costs that are dircetly attributable to the acquisition, construction or prodiction of a qualifying assets arc capitalised during the
period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for it's intended usc or sale. Qualifying assets arc assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

2.6 Other intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired scparatcly are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value
at the date of acquisition. ['ollowing initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation has becn included within depreciation, amortisation and impairment of nonfinancial assets.

Subsequent expenditures on the maintenance of computer software is expensed as incurred.

When an intangible asset is disposcd of, the gain or loss on disposal is determined as the difference between the proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and
is recognised in profit or loss within other income or other expenses.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (comprising fittings and furniturc) are initially recognised at acquisition cost or manufacturing cost, including any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asscts to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Company’s
management

Property, plant and cquipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis to write down the cost less estimated residual value of Property, plant and equipment. The following useful lives
are applied:

¢ Buildings : 3-60 ycars

* Plant and Equipment : 8-15 ycars

* Furniture and Iixtures : 8-10 years

* Vehicles : 6-10 years

* Office Iiquipment : 5 years

* Computers : 3-6 years

Material residual value estimates and cestimates of uscful life are updated as required, but at least annually

Gains or losses arising on the disposal of Property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between the disposal procecds and the carrying amount
of the asscts and are recognised in profit or loss within other income or other expenses.

2.8 Leased assets

2.8.1 Finance leases

Management applies judgment in considering the substance of a lease agreement and whether it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the leased asset. Key factors considered include the length of the lease term in relation to the cconomic life of the asset, the present value of the
minimum lease payments in relation to the asset’s fair value, and whether the Company obtains ownership of the asset at the end of the lease term.

For leases of land and buildings, the minimum lease payments are first allocated to cach component based on the relative fair values of the respective lease
interests. Fach component is then evaluated separately for possible treatment as a finance lease, taking into consideration the fact that land normally has an
indefinite economic life.

See Note 2.7 for the depreciation methods and useful lives for assets held under finance leases.

The interest clement of lease payments is charged to profit or loss, as finance costs over the period of the lease.

2.8.2 Operating leases
All other leases are treated as operating leases. Where the Company is a lessee, payments on operating lease agrecments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.

2.9 Impairment testing of goodwill, other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

For impaitment asscssment purposes, assets arc grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely independent cash inflows (cash-generating units). As a
result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill is allocated to those cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from syncrgies of a related business combination and represent the lowest level within the Company at which management monitors
goodwill.

Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated (determined by the Company’s management as cquivalent to its operating segments) are tested for
trtedugl assets or cash-generating units arc tested for impairment whenever events o changes in circumstances indicate

impairment at least annually. All otheg
that the carrying amount may not |




Notes forﬂ:ing part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s (or cash-generating unit’s) carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and valuc-in-use. ‘To determine the value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from cach cash-
generating unit and determines a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures
are directly linked to the Company’s latest approved budget, adjusted as nccessary to exclude the effects of future reorganisations and assct cnhancements.
Discount factors are determined individually for cach cash-gencrating unit and reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and asset-specific
risk factors.

Impairment losses for cash-gencrating units reduce first the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to that cash-generating unit. Any remaining impairment loss
is charged pro rata to the other asscts in the cash-gencrating unit. With the exception of goodwill, all assets are subscquently reassessed for indications that an
impairment loss previously recognised may no longer cxist. An impairment loss is reversed if the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its
carrying amount.

2.10 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives risc to a financial assct of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

2.10.1 Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments;

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that arc
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assct. The company currently have security deposits, investment in preference shares of subsidiary companics, trade
recetvables, loans etc.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the financial asset and subscquently all the
risks and rewards are tranferred. A financial lability is derccognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

2.10.2 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets:

Iinancial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL).

A financial asset 1s measured at amortised cost if it mects both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FV1PL. :

a) the assct is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

b) the contractual terms of the financial assct give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met and it is not designated as at 1'VTPL:

a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial asscts and

b) the contractual terms of the financial assct give rise on specificd dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are classified as measured at I'VIP1.. The Bank may designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at I'VOCI as at I'V'TPL. if doing so climinates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. The Bank has not
applied fair value designation option for any financial asscts.

2.10.3 Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applics expected credit loss {HCI] model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following
financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a. Dinancial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g. security deposits

b. Ifinancial asscts that are available for sale.

¢. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Point ¢ provided above.

"The application of simplified approach require the company to recognise the impairment loss allowance based on lifetime F.CLs at cach reporting date, dght from
its initial recognition. [or recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. Tf credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month IiCLL is used to provide for impairment loss.
[Towever, if credit risk has increascd significantly, lifetime IECL is uscd. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no
longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default cvents
over the expected life of a financial instrument.

The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime 11C1. which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are duc to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects
to receive [i.e., all cash shortfalls], discounted at the original EIR. ECT, impairment loss allowance [or reversal| recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss under the head ‘other expenses’. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described
below :

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance reducing the net carrying

amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company doces not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.




Notes fom‘ling part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

2.10.4 Classification and subsequent measurement of financial liabilities:

The measurement of financial liabilitics depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. "This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge rlationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives arc also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss Financial Liabilitics designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied for
liabilities designated as I'V'IPL., fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subscquently
transferred to the Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of
such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Loans and borrowings:

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the RIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The LIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.10.5 Reclassification of financial instruments:

‘The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial
assets which are cquity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the
business model for managing those asscts. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in
the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A
change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company
reclassifies financial assets, it applics the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period
following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses |including impairment gains or losses] or interest.
The Company did not reclassify any financial assets in the current period.

2.10.6 Offsetting of financial instruments:

linancial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offsct the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realisc the assets and settle the liabilitics simultancously.
2.11 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing cach product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

a. Raw Materials, Packing Material and Stores & Spare Parts: Cost includes cost of purchasc and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first-in-first-out basis.

b. Iinished Goods and Work-in-Progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials, labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal
operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first-in-first-out basis.

¢. Stock-in-Trade: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined
on first-in-first-out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

2.12 Income taxes

"Tax expense recognised in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Calculation of current tax 1s based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred income
taxes arc calculated using the liability method.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that the underlying tax loss or deductible temporary difference will be utilised against future
taxable income. "T'his is assessced based on the Company’s forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expeases and specific
limits on the usc of any unused tax loss or credit.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-term, highly liquid investments maturing within 90 days from
the date of acquisition that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which arc subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.14 Equity, reserves and dividend payments

Share capital represents the nominal (pag

he-af shares that have been issued
ety .ANJ‘J\'{;NJ(- of sharc capital. Any transaction costs associated with the-issuing of shargs are deducted from share
.._-'yA '. -.J E -. '.I
Other components of equity inchud 3
® Remeasurement of net defind 1y *omprises the actuarial losses from chunges 1

5 - ;ﬁif“mlm“"s and the return on
plan assets (sce Note 2.15) 1 e



Notes fom‘n'ng part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

® Retained carnings includes all current and prior period retained profits and share-based employee remuneration (see Note 29). All transactions with owners of
the parent are recorded separately within cquity. Dividend distributions payable to equity shareholders are included in other liabilities when the dividends have
been approved in a general meeting prior to the reporting date.

2.15 Post-employment benefits and short-term employee benefits

Post-employment benefit plans

The Company provides post-employment bencfits through various defined contribution and defined benefit plans.

Defined contribution plans :

Retirement benefits in the form of provident fund and employee state insurance are defined contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due.

Defined benefit plans :

Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method made at the end of cach
financial year. [ivery employce who has completed five years or morc of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for cach completed
year of service.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the assct ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability and the return on plan assets, are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to Retained llarnings through OCI in
the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Leave liability:

The employees of the Company arc entitled to leave as per the leave policy of the Company. ‘The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward
beyond twelve months, as long term employce benefit for measurement purposes. Such long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year end. Actuarial gains/losses should be recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits, including holiday entitlement, are current liabilities included in pension and other employee obligations, measured at the
undiscounted amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement.

2.16 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities :

Provisions for product warrantics, legal disputes, oncrous contracts or other claims are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required from the Company and amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing
or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date,
including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likclihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of
money is material.

Any reimbursement that the Company is virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is recognised as a scparate assct. [Towever, this
asset may not exceed the amount of the related provision.

No liability is recognised if an outflow of cconomic resources as a result of present obligations is not probable. Such situations are discloscd as contingent liabilitics
unless the outflow of resources is remote.

Tf the cffect of the time valuc of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate which reflects the current market assessment of time

value of money. Government bond rate can be used as discount rate, as it is a riskfree pre-tax rate reflecting the time value of money. For this purpose, the
discount rate should also be reassessed at the end of cach reporting period, including the interim reporting datc, if any.

2.18 Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

Recognition of service revenues :

Determining when to recognise revenues from after-sales services requires an understanding of both the nature and timing of the services provided and the
customers’ pattern of consumption of those services, based on historical experience and knowledge of the market. (sce Note 2.4)

Recognition of deferred tax assets :

The cxtent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability that future taxable income will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry-forwards can be utilised. In addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal
or ecconomic limits or uncertaintics in various tax jurisdictions (see Note 2.12).

2.19 Estimation uncertainty
Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is
provided below. Actual results may be substantially different.

Impairment of non-financial assets and goodwill

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of cach asset or cash gencrating units based on expected future cash flows and uses an
interest rate to discount them. Istimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate (sec
Note 2.9).




Notes forrﬂing part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Useful lives of depreciable assets
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these
estimates relate to technological obsolescence that may change the utility of certain software and I'T equipment.

Inventories

Management estimates the net realisable values of inventories, taking into account the most eliable evidence available at each reporting date. The future realisation
of these inventories may be affected by future technology or other market-driven changes that may reduce future selling prices.
Construction contract revenue

Recognised amounts of construction contract revenues and related receivables reflect management’s best estimate of each contract’s outcome and stage of
completion. For more complex contracts in particular, costs to complete and contract profitability are subject to significant estimation uncertainty (see Note 2.4),

Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and
anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit expenses.

Fair value measurement

Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market quotes are not available) and non-financial assets.
This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. Management bases its assumptions on
obscrvable data as far as possible but this is not always available. In that case management uses the best information available. Estimated fair values may vary from
the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.
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Wotes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended Match 31, 2023

(Utiless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR lacs)

Note 3.1: Capital wotrk in progress

Assets under construction comprises of expenditure for the building and plant in the course of constructon. The amount of expenditure
recognised in carrying amount of capital work in progress are as under.

As at Ag at
Mazrch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Buildings under construction 26.79 26.79
Plant equipment's under erection 9,690.97 9,690.97
Borrowing costs capitalised 50.12 50.12
Other expenses (directly attributable to construction/erection of assets)
Employee benefit expense 11.19 11.19
Other directly attributable expenses (including trial/test run expenses) 5,052.82 5,052.82
Total 14,831.89 14,831.89
Amount in CWIP for a period of
R e 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years s
year

Projects in progress 5 -
Projects temporarily suspended 14,831.89 14,831.89
Total = 14,831.89 14,831.89

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Notes forming part of the fitiancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

4 Investments

Investments in cquity instruments of subsidiaries
Investments in cquity instruments of associates
Investment in preference shares- Equity portion
Investment in prreference shares- Debt portion
Investment i ZCB- Hquity portion

Investment in ZCB- Debt portion

Details of trade investments:

Investment in equity instruments:

Subsidiary companies [Unquoted]:

50,000 (Previous Year - 50,000) fully paid up equity shares of Farth Environment Managment Services Pvt..td
40,000 (Previous Year-40,000) fully paid up cquity shares of A27 Waste Management (Merrut) Limited

40,000 (Previous Year-40,000) fully paid up equity shares of A2Z Waste Management (Moradabad) Limited
40,000 (Previous Ycar-40,000) fully paid up cquity shares of A2Z Waste Management (Varanasi) Limited
50,000 (Previous Year-50,000) fully paid up cquity shares of A2Z Waste Management (Mirzapur) Limited
50,000 (Previous Year-50,000) fully paid up cquity shares of A2Z Waste Management (Badaun) Limited

50,000 (Previous Year-50,000) fully paid up cquity shares of A2Z Waste Management (Balia) Limited

50,000 (Previous Year-50,000) fully paid up cquity shares of A2Z Waste Management (I'atehpur) Limited
50,000 (Previous Year-50,000) fully paid up cquity shares of A2Z Waste Management (Jaunpur) Limited

50,000 (Previous Year-50,000) fully paid up cquity shares of A2Z Waste Management (Sambhal) Limited
50,000 (Previous Year-50,000) {ully paid up equity shares of A2Z Waste Management (Ranchi) Limited

10,000 (Previous Year- 10,000) fully paid up cquity shares of A27Z Waste Management (Dhanbad) Private Limited
50,000 (Previous Year- 50,000) fully paid up cquity shares of A27Z Waste Management (Ahmedabad) Limited
40,000 (Previous Year- 40,000 fully paid up cquity shares of A2Z Waste Management (Jaipur) Limited

10,000 (Previous Year- 10,000) fully paid up equity shares of Shree Balaji Pottery Private Limited

10,000 (Previous Year- 10,000) fully paid up cquity shares of Shree Hari Om Utensils Private Limited

In equity shares of associate company
13,000 (Previous Year- 13,000) fully paid up cquity shares A2Z Waste Management (Nainital) Private Limited
15,000 (Previous Year- 15,000) fully paid up cquity shares A27 Waste Management (Ludhiana) Limited

Investment in preference shares- Equity portion

15,950,000 (Previous Year- 15,950,000) fully paid up 0.001% non participative cumulative redeemable preference shares
of A27Z Wastc Management (Merrut) Limited

7,450,000 (Previous Year- 7,450,000) fully paid up 0.001% non participative cumulative redeemable preference shares of
A27Z Waste Management (Moradabad) Limited

6,950,000 (Previous Year- 6,950,000) fully paid up 0.001% non participative cumulative redeemable preference shares of
A27, Waste Management (Varanasi) Limited

6,300,000 (Previous Year- 6,300,000) fully paid up 0.001% non participative cumulative redeemable preference shares of
A27 Waste Management (Ranchi) Limited

2,450,000 (Previous Year- 2,450,000) fully paid up 0.001% non participative cumulative redeemable preference shares of
A27 Waste Management (Badaun) Limited

1,950,000 (Previous Year- 1,950,000) fully paid up 0.001% non participative cumulative redeemable preference shares of
A27 Waste Management (Balia) Limited

1,950,000 (Previous Year- 1,950,000) fully paid up 0.001% non participative cumulative redeemable preference shares of
A27 Waste Management (Ifatchpur) Limited

700,000 (Previous Year- 700,000) fully paid up 0.001% non participative cumulative redeemable preference shares of
A27, Waste Management (Jaunpur) Limited

2,450,000 (Previous Year- 2,450,000) fully paid up 0.001% non participative cumulative redeemable preference shares of
A27 Waste Management (Mirzapur) Limited

As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
64.00 64.00
2.80 2.80
3,522.83 3,522.83
3,153.16 2,805.80
796.11 796.11
28.89 25.50
7,567.80 7,217.04
5.00 5.00
4.00 4.00
4.00 4.00
4.00 4.00
5.00 5.00
5.00 5.00
5.00 5.00
5.00 5.00
5.00 5.00
5.00 5.00
5.00 5.00
1.00 1.00
5.00 5.00
4.00 4.00
1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00
64.00 64.00
1.30 1.30
1.50 1.50
2.80 2.80

As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1,183.66 1,183.66
538.44 538.44
511.24 511.24
470.19 470.19
182.92 182.92
145.59 145.59
145.59 145.59
52.52 52.52
183.08 183.08
109.62 109.62
3,522.83 3,522.83



7 Other non-current assets

8 Inventories (lower of cost or net realizable value)

Notes forming part of the fiflancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Investment in preference shares- Debt portion
15,950,000 (Previous Year- 15,950,000) fully paid up 0.001% non participative cumulative redeemable preference shares
of A2Z Waste Management (Merrut) Limited

7,450,000 (Previous Year- 7,450,000) fully paid up 0.001% non participative curnulative redeemable preference shares of
A27 Waste Management (Moradabad) Limited

6,950,000 (Previous Year- 6,950,000) fully paid up 0.001% non participative cumulative redeemable preference shares of
A27 Waste Management (Varanasi) Limited

6,300,000 (Previous Year- 6,300,000) fully paid up 0.001% non participative cumulative redeemable preference shares of
A27 Waste Management (Ranchi) Limited

2,450,000 (Previous Year- 2,450,000) fully paid up 0.001% non participative cumulative redeemable preference shares of
A27 Waste Management (Badaun) Limited

1,950,000 (Previous Year- 1,950,000) fully paid up 0.001% non participative cumulative redeemable preference shares of
A27 Waste Management (Balia) Limited

1,950,000 (Previous Year- 1,950,000) fully paid up 0.001% non participative cumulative redeemable preference shares of
A27, Waste Management (Fatehpur) Limited

700,000 (Previous Year- 700,000) fully paid up 0.001% non participative cumulative redeemable preference shares of
A27, Waste Management (Jaunpur) Limited

2,450,000 (Previous Year- 2,450,000) fully paid up 0.001% non participative cumulative redeemable preference shares of
A27Z Waste Management (Mirzapur) Limited

1,465,000 (Previous Year- 1,465,000) fully paid up 0.001°% non participative cumulative redeemable preference shares of
A27, Waste Management (Sambhal) Limited

Investment in Zero Coupon Debenture- Equity Portion (Jaipur)

Investment in Zero Coupon Debenture- Equity Portion (Rishikesh Waste Management Limited)

Investment in Zero Coupon Debenture- Debt Portion (Jaipur)

Investment in Zero Coupon Debenture- Debt Portion ((Rishikesh Waste Management Limited)

Aggregate amount of quoted investments

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Other financial asset

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Security deposit
Earnest money deposit

Contract cost

6 Non-current tax assets (net)

Advance income tax

Less : Provision for taxation

Capital advances
Prepaid expenses
GST recoverable

Works contract tax recoverable

Gratuity fund assets(net)

Project stores and spares
Raw material

Finished goods

1,047.10 931.75
525.82 467.89
467.79 416.26
406.81 361.99
158.04 140.63
125.79 111.93
125.79 111.93

4451 39.61
157.64 140.27
93.89 83.55

3,153.16 2,805.80
330.56 330.56
465.55 465.55
796.11 796.11

18.32 16.54
10.57 8.96
28.89 25.50
7,567.80 7,217.04
7,567.80 7,217.04
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
250.96 250.96
102.62 102.62
3.64 3.04
357.22 357.22
655.17 655.74
655.17 655.74
1,250.90 1,243.29
0.32 0.32
12.32 12.05
119.10 119.10
291 8.60
1,385.55 1,383.37
0.94 0.94
0.24 0.24
630.51 630.51
631.68 631.68




Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

9 Trade receivables (unsecured)*

From other than related parties

Considered good 2,464.95 2,848.91
Considered doubtful 123.28 120.65
2,588.23 2,969.56
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (123.28) (120.65)
2,464.95 2,848.91
Ageing of trade receivables at March 31, 2023
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 | 6 months - 1-2 2-3 More than 3 Total
months 1 year years years years o
(i)Undisputed T'rade receivables — considered good 2,464.95 2,464.95
(i) Undisputed 'I'rade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk 123.28 123.28
(ii1) Undisputed ‘I'rade Receivables — credit impaired 5 (123.28) (123.28)
(iv) Disputed T'rade Receivables — considered good -
(v) Disputed I'rade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk :
(v1) Disputed T'rade Receivables — credit impaired - . -
Total - - 2,464.95 2,464.95
Ageing of trade receivables at March 31, 2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 | 6 months - 1-2 2-3 More than 3 Total
months 1 year years years years °
(i)Undisputed "I'rade receivables — considered good 2,848.91 2,848.91
(i1)Undisputed T'rade Receivables — which have significant 120.65
increasc in credil risk 120.65 :
(it1) Undisputed T'rade Receivables — credit impaired (120.65) (120.65)
(iv) Disputed T'rade Receivables — considered good =
(v) Disputed T'rade Receivables — which have significant
increasc in credit risk -
(vi) Disputed T'rade Receivables — credit impaired < X =
Total - - - 2,848.91 2,848.91

* 'I'rade receivables include, in case of A2Z Green Waste Management Limited, an outstanding recoverable of INR 762.66 lacs, being recetvable from a customer for collection
and transportation of municipal solid waste. ‘The company has filed a writ petition with Honorable Tigh Court of Patna, Bihar for recovery of dues. An interim order was
passed directing the customer to release 75% of the amount recoverable. Against the interim order the customer has filed Letters Patent Appeal ('LPA') which has been
dismisscd, confirming the interim order. Subsequently, the writ petition has been allowed by the Court and customer has been directed to pay the entire amount along with the

interest at the rate of 9% p.a from the due date.

10 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks - in current accounts

Cash on hand

11 Other bank balances

Ifixed deposit with bank having maturity more than three months less than onc year

20.14 19.42

0.81 0.81
20.95 20.23
24.21 24.21
24.21 24.21




Notes forming payt of the fifiancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

12 Short-term loans

Unsecured
Loans to fellow subsidiaries & associate company 8.70 8.70
Loans and advances to subsidiaries 6,385.53 6,063.77
Interest accrued and due on loan given to group company 4,361.15 4361.15
10,755.38 10,433.63
Loans granted to Promoters, Directors/KMPs /Related parties
Type of Borrower Current Period Previous Period
:zs:)t:::iing ?o(::l " Amount outstanding | % of Total®
Promoters -
Ditectors
KMPs - - - -
Related Parties 10,755.38 100% 10,433.63 100%
Total 10,755.38 100% 10,433.63 100%
13 Other financial assets
Contract cost , 1.89 1.89
Advances recoverable in cash 1,472.84 1,472.84
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits 2.22 222
1,476.96 1,476.96
A
14 Other current asscts
Prepaid expenses 5.81 5.81
5.81 5.81
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)
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b)

d)

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Number Amount Number Amount

Share capital
Authorised
Iiquity shares of Rs 10 cach 60,000,000 6,000.00 60,000,000 6,000.00
0.01% Non-patticipative cumulative redeemable 185,000,000 18,500.00 185,000,000 18,500.00
preference shares of Rs 10 each *

245,000,000 24,500.00 245,000,000 24,500.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
liquity shares of Rs 10 cach 22,750,000 2,275.00 22,750,000 2,275.00

22,750,000 2,275.00 22,750,000 2,275.00

*Preference shares issued has been accounted on amortised cost method

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year :

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares
Balance at the beginning of the year 22,750,000 2,275.00 22,750,000 2,275.00
Add : Issued duting the year . -
Balance at the end of the year 22,750,000 2,275.00 22,750,000 2,275.00

Terms and rights attached to equity shares

‘The company has only onc class of cquity shares having the par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to onc vote per

share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupeces.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be eatided to teceive remaining assets of the Company, after

distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shates held by the shateholders.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company and shares held by the holding and associate companies

Name of shareholder As at March 31, 2023

As at Macch 31, 2022

Number % of holding Number % of holding
Equity shares
A27 Infra & Engineering Limited 9,693,987 42.61% 9,693,987 42.61%
Anand Mchrotra 1,200,000 5.27% 1,200,000 5.27%
Vista I'T'CL India Limited (on behalf of IL&FS 10,031,013 44.09% 10,031,013 44.09%
I'inancial Services Limited)
Devdhar ‘T'rading & Consultants Private 1.imited 1,591,000 6.99% 1,591,000 6.99%

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

Promoter name No. of shares held % of holding

% Change during the year

A27 Infra & Engineering Limited 42.61%

9,693,987




, Notes forming part of the'financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

16

17

18

Other equity

A. Equity portion of preference shares
Opening balance

Addidons/deletons during the year
Closing balance

B. Equity portion of debenture
Opening balance
Additions/deletions during the year
Closing balance

C. Retained earnings

Opening balance

Add: Transfer from statement of profit and loss
Add: Acturial gain/loss

Closing balance

D. ESOP reserve

Opening balance
Addition during the year
Closing balance

Total other equity
Borrowings
Unsecured

Debentures (unsecured)

Unsecured borrowings from rclated party

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
13,197.61 13,197.61
13,197.61 13,197.61
1,461.03 1,461.03
1,461.03 1,461.03
(38,667.15) (36,602.70)
1,441.60 (2,063.61)
(5.91) (10.84)
(37,231.46) (38,667.15)
10.45 10.45
10.45 10.45
(22,562.37) (23,998.06)
33.18 29.04
11,395.08 9,973.81
11,428.26 10,002.85

, Terms of Coupon Rate/
M.
aturity Date —— Interest Rate March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Unsecured
Convertible into
On or before 0.01% Non
Debentures December 31, participative Zero 33.18 29.04
2026 cumulative
Preference Shares
Loan from Group Company On demand On demand 10.75% - 14% 11,395.08 9.973.81
‘Total non-current borrowings 11,428.26 10,002.85
Other non-current liabilities
Subsidy 3,177.21 3,177.21
LER for SWM land leases 654.28 620.22
3,831.48 3,797.43




Nptes forming pars of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
19 Borrowings

19.1 Secured
Working capital March 31, 2023 889.26 889.26
Cash credit facilitics 4,501.19 4,882.51
Current maturities of term loan 6,616.13 6,716.13

19.2 Unsecured
Loan from fellow subsidiary company 3,871.26 3,871.26
Unsccured borrowings from others 492.42 492.42
Current maturities of long-term debenture 2,000.00 2,000.00
18,370.26 18,851.58
MEmrnTE e Coupun Rate/ March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Repayment Interest Rate

Secured

Working capital March 31, 2023 On demand On demand 14.80% - 15.15 % 889.26 889.26
BPR + 380 bps -

Cash credit facilitics On demand On demand BPR + 400 bps 4,501.19 4,882.51
Current maturities of term loan 13.00%-15.50% 6,616.13 6,716.13

The carrying amount of working capital term loan, Cash credit facilities and Buyers credit facilitics are considered to be same as their fair value due to their short term nature.

* Cash credit facility from banks amounting to INR 4501.19 lacs (March 31, 2022: INR 4882.51 lacs), in case of A2Z Greeneffect Waste Management Limited from IDBI Bank
are secured by first par passu charge on the entire current assets of holding company including book debts and other receivable and fixed assets of the company.

** 1 oan from Group Company is interest bearin, 10.75% - 14.25% and is repayable on demand
p pany g pay

Unsecured

Loan from Group Company On demand On demand 3,871.26 3,871.26

Borrowings from others 492.42 492.42

Current maturities of fong-term debenture 2,000.00 2,000.00

Total current borrowings 18,370.26 18,851.58

20 Trade payables

Dues of creditors of micro and small enterprises* 23.28 30.24

Other than acceptances: total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 3,571.99 3,558.41
3,595.27 3,588.64

*Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

- principal amount 23.28 3024

- Interest amount

‘I'he amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act,
2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during cach accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro Small and Medium Lnterprise Development
Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the
Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

All the trade payables are short term. The carrying value of trade payables are considered to be the reasonable approximation of fair value.

ol




Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Ageing of trade payables at March 31, 2023

OQutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars
Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME - 0.18 0.14 22.96 23.28
()  Others 638.23 13.13 0.47 9.23 2,910.92 3,571.98
(i)  Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv)  Disputed dues - Others . - - -
Total 638.23 13.31 0.47 9.37 2,933.88 3,595.26
Ageing of trade payables at March 31, 2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME - 30.24 - - 30.24
(i) Others 1,088.73 6.47 14.80 25.66 242274 3,558.40
(1)  Disputed ducs — MSMIE - - -
(iv)  Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 1,088.73 36.70 14.80 25.66 2,422.74 3,588.64
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
21 Other financial liabilities
Amount payable to holding company 4,140.27 3,705.49
Due to group company 19,153.59 19,079.41
Interest accrued and due on borrowings from others 3,469.34 3,469.34
Interest accured and duce on group company 810.49 4,252.64
27,573.69 30,506.87
22 Other current liabilities
Advance from customers 6.35 6.35
Statutory ducs payable 450.65 578.49
Others payable 230.59 223.20
687.60 808.04
23 Short-term provisions
Provision for employce benefits - Compensated absences benefit 0.14
Provision for preference dividend 0.25 0.25
0.25 0.39




Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

24 Other income
Interest income:
- on fixed deposits
- on loan given to group company
- on loan given to Subsidiary
Miscellencous income
Liability written back

25 Cost of material comsumed
Opening stock
Less: closing stock
Material consumed

Site expenditure

26 Changes in inventories of Finished goods, Stock -in- trade and Work- in- progress
Opening inventory of traded goods
Less: Closing inventory of traded goods

27 Employee benefits expense
Salaries and bonus including directors' remuneration
Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expense
Compensated absences benefits

28 Finance costs
Interest
-on group company
-on others
Other borrowing costs:

- Bank charges

29 Depreciation

Depreciation & amortization expense

30 Other expenses
Rent
Amount written off
Travelling and conveyance
Legal and professional
- Statutory audit fee

Miscellaneous expenses

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
0.13 0.04
350.46 312.84
529.19
120.77 -
3,442.14 12.90
3,913.50 854.98
117 1.17
1.17 1.17
630.51 630.51
630.51 630.51
18.52 24.95
0.02 0.22
0.24) 0.37)
(0.14) (0.10)
18.16 24.70
1,425.41 1,821.68
65.50 104.07
0.05 -

1,490.96 1,925.75
924.21 925.17
924.21 925.17
34.75 3572

- 1.20

0.04

3.27 1.01
0.50 5.00
0.00 0.03
38.57 42.97




Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

31

32

RS TS For the year ended For the year ended
March 31 2023 March 31 2022
Current tax expense -
Deferred tax expense -
Tax expense - -
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate:
For the year ended For the year ended
March 312023 March 31 2022
Loss before tax 1,441.60 (2,063.61)
Corporate tax ratc as per income tax act,1961 26.00% 26,00
Tax on accounting profit 374.82 (536.54)
i) Tax cffect on non deductable expenses/Non taxable income 305.33 275.79
ify Tax cffect on temporary timing differences on which deferred tax not created 118.16 245.56
iti) ‘I'ax effect on losses of current year on which no deferred tax is created (7T98.31) 15.19
Tax expense 0.00 (0.00)

a) Detail of unused tax losses for which no deferred tax is recognised in balance sheet:

Tax losses

Asscssment Year 2015-16
Asscssment Year 2020-21
Asscssment Year 2022-23
Asscssment Year 2023-24
Total

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Base Deferred Expiry date . Base Deferred tax Expiry date
amount fax (Assessment year)  amount (Asgessment year)
2,606.81 677.77 March 31, 2024 2,968.30 771.76 March 31, 2024
664.94 172.88 March 31, 2029 664.94 172.88 March 31, 2029
- N March 31, 2031 (361.50) (93.99) March 31, 2031
(3,070.44) (798.31)  March 31,2032
201.30 52.34 3,271.74 850.65

b) Detail of unrecognised deductible temporary differences and unabsorbed depreciation for which no deferred tax asset is recognised in financial

statements:

Unabsorbed depreciation
lixpense on which ‘IS not deposited

Tax effect on temporary timing differences

Earning per share

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Base Deferred Expiry date Base Expiry date
: Deferred tax
amount tax (Assessment year)  amount (Assessment year)
6,406.60 1,665.72 Not applicable 6,406.60 1,665.72 Not applicable
- - Not applicable 551.03 143.27 Not applicable
454.71 118.23 Not applicable 393.45 102.30 Not applicable
6,861.07 1,783.88 7,351.07 1,911.28

Both the basic and diluted earnings per share have been caleulated using the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company as the numerator, ie no adjustments to

profit were necessary in 2023 or 2022.

“I'he reconciliation of the weighted average number of shares for the purposes of diluted carnings per share to the weighted average number of ordinary shares used in

the caleulation of basic carnings per share is as follows:

Particulars

Weighted average number of shares used in basic earnings per share(in lacs)

Shares deemed to be issued for no consideration in respect of share-based payments

Weighted average number of shares used in diluted earnings per share

The numerators and denominators used to calculate the basic and diluted EPS arc as follows:

Profit attributable to sharcholders
Basic and weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year

Nominal valuc of equity share

INR Lacs
Numbers in
Lacs

INR
INR

Balance as on

Balance as on

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

227.50 22750

227.50 227.50

’

1,441.60 (2,063.61)

227.50 227.50

10 10
6.34 (9.07)
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Related party disclosures
Names of related parties

Subsidiaries

A27 Waste Management (Mcrrut) Limited
A2Z Waste Management (Moradabad) Limited
A27 Waste Management (Varanasi) Limited
A27 Waste Management (Balia) 1amited

A27Z Waste Management (Badaun) Limited
A27 Waste Management (Iatchpur) Limited
A27. Waste Management (Jaunpur) Limited
A2Z Waste Management (Mirzapur) Limited
A27 Waste Management (Ranchi) Limited
A27Z, Waste Management (Sambhal) Limited
A2Z Waste Management (Dhanbad) Private Limited
A27 Waste Management (Jaipur) Limited

A27 Waste Management (Ahmedabad) Limited
Shrec Balaji Pottery Private Limited

Shree Hart Om Utensils Private Limited

[Farth Environment Management Scrvices Private Limited

Subsidiaries of A2Z Infra Engincering Limited

A2Z Infrascrvices Limited

A2Z Powercom Limited

Mansi Bijlee & Rice Mills Private Limited

Chavan Rishi International Limited (Till 08.02.2022)

Magic Genie Services ]imited

A27 Maintenance & Iingincering Scrvices Limited and Satya Builders (Association of person)
Blackrock Waste Processing Private Limited

Subsidiaries of A2Z Infraservices Limited

FEcogreen Favirotech Solutions Limited (49% along with management control)
A27 Infrascrvices Lanka (Pvt) Limited (6l 26.04.2022)

A2Z Waste Management (Aligarh) Limited

A27. Waste Management (Ludhiana) Limited

Vswach Linvironment (Aligarh) Private Limited (wef 09.12.2022)

Vsapients T'echno Services Private Limited (wef 21.02.2023)

Associate enterprises of A2Z Infra Engineering Limited
1 A2Z Wastc Management (Nainital) Private Limited
2 A27. Waste Management (Jaipur) Limited

Joint venture partners (JV partner)

Bhumika T'ransport

Ram Lingincering & Construction Co.

Karnataka Compost Development Corporation Limited

[ico Save System (P) Limited (Representative of Burn Environmental and Technologies Private Limited)

Maccaferri Environmental Solutions Private Iimited

Subsidiary of A2Z Waste Management (Ludhiana) Limited
Magic Genie Smartech Solutions Limited
Rishikesh Waste Management Limited

(VII) Directors and KMP

(VIII)

1 Ms. Atima Khanna (Director) (wef 11.05.2022)
2 Mr. Surender Singh (Director)

3 Ms. Chaitali Sharma (Director)

4 Mr. Deepak (Director)

5 Mr. Anand Mishra (Director)

6 Mr. Naveen Agarwal (Chief Executive Officer)
7 Mr. Sanju Kumar (Chief Financia Officer)

8 Mr. Jitender Yadav (Company Secretary wefl 01.04.2022)

Private companies in which a director or manager or his relative is a member or director
Mr. Surender Singh
a. Tanya Infra Enterprises Private Limited

b. Pragati Fluids Corporation Private Limited
c. Planet [luids Private Limited m
e B ‘N . "/
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Notes formihg part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 34 : Financial risk management

(i) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
Ilinancial assets and financial Labilitics measured at fair value in the statement of financial position arc Companyed into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three Levels
are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

(i) Financial instruments by category

l'or amortised cost instraments, carrying value represents the best estimate of fair value

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost

Financial assets

Investments - - 3,182.06 - 2,831.30
‘I'rade recervables - 2,464.95 - 2,848.91
Othcer financial asscts - - 1,834.18 - 1,834.18
l.oans 10,755.38 10,433.63
Cash and cash cquivalents - - 20.95 - - 20.23
Other bank balances - . 24.21 - - 24.21
Total financial assets - - 18,281.72 - - 17,992.44

Financial liabilities

Borrowings - - 29,798.52 . 28,854.44
‘T'rade payables = J 3,595.27 - 3,588.04
Other financial habilitices - - 27,573.69 . . 30,506.87
Total Financial - 60,967.47 - - 62,949.95

(iii) Risk management
The Company’s activitics expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk, This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages
the risk and the related impact in the financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Measurement

Credit tish Cash and cash equivalents, trade reccivables, e losi Bank deposits, diversification of asset base, credit limits
“redit risk . . Ageing analysis
) financial assets measured at amortised cost BeTg analy and collaterl.

e . s Rolling cash flow Availability of committed credit lincs and borrowin,
Liquidity nisk Borrowings and other liabilitics & U 6
’ forccasts facilitics
. . Recognised financial asscts and liabilitics not  Cash flow .
Market risk - foreign exchange . . . 3 liorward contract/hed
& 8 denominated in Indian rupee (INR) forecasting /bedging
Market risk - interest rate Long-term borrowings at variablc rates Scnsitivity analysis ~ Cross currency fix rate swaps
Market misk - sccurity price Investments in cquity sceuritics Scnsitivity analysis ~ Portfolio diversification

The Company’s risk management is carricd out by a central treasury department (of the company) under policies approved by the board of directors. The board of directors
provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific arcas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of
excess liquidity.

A. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Company. ‘I'he. Credit misk arises from cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, investments
carried at amortised cost and deposits with banks and financial mstitutions. ‘I'he Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of financial
assets recognised at the reporting date, as summarised below:

'.f-/f.'-‘n:‘




Notes forming pait of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

"The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified cither individually or by the Company, and incorporates this information into
its credit risk controls. Where available at reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports on customers and other counterparties are obtained and used. The Company’s
policy is to deal only with creditworthy counterpartics

'The Company’s reccivables comprises of trade recivables. During the periods presented, the Company made no write-offs of trade receivables and it does not expect to
reccive future cash flows or recoveries from collection of cash flows previously written off. The Company has certain trade reccivables that have not been settled by the
contractual due date but are not considered to be impaired, as given below:

INR
As at
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Not more than 30 days
More than 30 days but not more than 60 days
More than 60 days but not morc than 90 days
More than 90 days 2.464.95 2.848.91
2,464.95 2,848.91

In respect of trade and other reccivables, the Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any Company of counterparties
having similar characteristics. ‘I'rade reccivables consist of a large number of customers in various industries and geographical arcas. Based on historical information about
customer default rates management consider the credit quality of trade receivables that are not past due or impaired to be good.

The credit risk for cash and cash cquivalents, mutual funds, and derivate financial instruments is considered negligible, since the counterpartics are reputable organisations with
high quality external credit ratings.

B. Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implics maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities to meet obligations when duc. Duc to the nature of the business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed
facilities.

Management monitors rolling forccasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash cquivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into
account the liquidity of the market in which the cntity operates. In addition, the Company’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and
considering the level of liquid asscts necessary to mect these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against intemnal and extemal regulatory requirements and maintaining
debt financing plans.

Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturitics for all non-derivative financial liabilities. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months cqual their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not

significant.

1
March 31, 2023 Les;et::m 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 18,370.26 - - 18,595.00 36,965.26
Trade payables 3,595.27 - 3,595.27
Other financial liabilites 27,573.69 - 27,573.69
Total 49,539.21 - - 18,595.00 68,134.21
March 31, 2022 Les‘sr:::m i 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 18,851.58 - 18,595.00 37,446.58
Trade payables 3,588.64 . 3,588.64
Other financial labilites 30,5006.87 - 30,506.87
Total 52,947.10 - - 18,595.00 71,542.10
Market risk
(a) Interest rate risk
Liabilities
The Company’s policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. At 31 March 2023, the Company 18 gxposed to changes in market interest
rates through bank borrowings at variable mntey . spmipany’s investments in Fixed Deposits all pay fixed int\.'yugt({'._\yls_

/ —




Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Interest rate risk exposure

Below is the overall exposure of the Company to interest rate risk:

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Variable rate borrowing 5,353.24 5,353.24
lYixed rate borrowing 24,445.28 23,501.20
Total borrowings 29,798.52 28,854.44

Sensiavity

Below is the sensitivity of profit or loss and equity changes in interest rates.

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
[nterest sensitivity*
Interest rates — increase by 100 basis points (100 bps) 297.99 288.54
Interest rates — decrease by 100 basis points (100 bps) (297.99) (288.54)

* Holding all other variables constant

Note 35 : Capital management policies and procedures
l'or the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued cquity capital, convertible preference shares, share premium and all other cquity rescrves
attributable to the equity holders of the Group.

The Group’ s capital management objectives are:

* to ensure the Group’s ability to continuce as a going concern

* to provide an adequate return to shareholders

by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of sk

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the equirements of the financial covenants. ‘T'o maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. 'The Group monitors capital using a
gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio between 20% and 40%. "I'he Group includes within nct
debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued opcrations.

March 31 2023 March 31 2022
Borrowings 29,798.52 28,854.44
I'rade payables 3,595.27 3,588.64
Other financial liabilitics 27,573.69 30,506.87
1css: Cash and cash cquivalents 20.95 20.23
Net debt 60,946.53 62,929.73
Iguity (20,287.37) (21,723.06)
Capital and net debt 40,659.16 41,206.67
Gearing ratio 149.90% 152.72%

Tn order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-
bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

Note 36 : Financial ratios

SI. No. Ratio At March 31,2022 [At March 31, 2021 Variance Reason for variance
1 Current ratio 0.31 0.29 0.07 No major vanance
1 Debt-equity ratio (1.47) (1.33) 0.11 No major varance
il Debt service coverage ratio NA NA NA NA
v Return on equity ratio -0.07 0.10 (1.69) No major vanance
v Inventory tumover ratio NA NA NA NA
vi Trade receivables turnover NA NA NA NA
Vil ‘Trade payables turnover NA NA NA NA
v Net capital turnover ratio NA NA
1x Net profit ratio NA NA
X Retura on capital CW 0.31 Changc 1s on account of increase
=l SO 1n losses
xi Return on investW —X}‘\ NA No major variance

a A

M. No. 505623\ W
5 \FRN 027533N) % g‘,:‘?
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unyess otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Formulae for computation of ratios are as follows:-

S1. No Ratios Formulae

1 Current ratio Current assets + Current liabilities

i Debt-equity ratio Total debt + Shareholder's equity

101 Debt service coverage ratio Eamings available for debt service® + Debt Service¥*

v Return on equity ratio (Net profit after tax - Preference Dividend (if any)) + Average shareholder's equity
v Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold or sales + Average Inventory

Vi Trade receivables turnover ratio Net Credit Sales + Average accounts receivables

vii Trade payables turmnover ratio Net credit purchases + Average trade payables
vin Net capital turnover ratio Net Sales + Working capital

ix Net profit ratio Net profit after tax + Revenue from operations

X Return on capital employed Earnings before interest and Taxes + Capital employed#iiok

xi Return on investment (Current value of investment - Cost of investment) + Cost of investment

L Earning for Debt Scrvice = Net Profit after taxes®*¥ + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and other amortizations + Interest + other

adjustments like loss on sale of Fixed assets etc.
= Debt service = Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments

Aok
“Net Profit after tax” means reported amount of “Profit / (loss) for the period” and it does not include items of other comprehensive income.

EIRE Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability




Greeneffect Waste Management Limited
Notes forming part'of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

37 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company's contribution towards the defined contribution plan

"The Company makes Provident Fund contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit plans for qualifymg employes, s gpecificd under the

Jaw. The contributions are paid to the Provident Fund ‘I'rust set up by the Company or to the respective
under the Pension Scheme. The Company 15 gencrally liable for annual contribution and

government specificd mminimum rate of return and recognises such contribution and shortfall,

Gratuity

The Company provides for the geatutsy for emplovees in India as per the Payment of Gratwry Act, 1
P g ¥ ) y ¥

Regional Provident Fund Commissioner

in the trust fund assets based on the

if any, as an expense in the year it 15 curred.

972, Hmployees who are in Conunuous sernce

of five years are chigible to gratuny. The amount of graanty payable on cetirement/ternmination is the employees last drawn bagic salary per month

computed proportonately for 15 dayg salary multphed for the mumber of years of sor
contributions to recognised funds in Indi, The Company does not fully fund the liab

over the period of time based on estimates of expected gratuity payments.

A reconciliation of the company’s defined benefit obligation (DBO) and plan assets to the amo

position for each of the reporting periods is presented below:

Assets and liability (Balance sheet position)

vice. the gratuity plan is funded plan and the Company makes
ility and mainiaing the target level of funding to be mamianed

unts presented in the statement of financial

Particulars As on

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Present value ofobligation 232 1.97
Fair Valuc of Plan Assets 5.22 10.55
Surplus / (deficit) 291 8.58
Effects of asset ceiling, if any
Net asset / (liability) 29N 8.58

Expenses Recognized during the year

Particulars For the year ending

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
In income statement (0.24) 0.37)
In other comprehensive income 591 0.84
Total expenses recognized during the year 5.67 0.47

Defined benefit obligation
The details of the company’s DBO are as follows:

Changes in the present value of obligation

Particulars For the year ending
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Present value of obligation as at the beginning 1.97 4.44
Current service cost 0.36 0.25
Interest expense Of COSt 0.14 0.30
Re-measurement {or Actuarial) (gamn) / loss arising from:

- change in demographic assumptions -

- change in financial assumptions (0.06) 0.01)

- experience variance (i.c. Actual experiences assumptions) 5.39 0.60

- others
Benefits paid (5:49) (3.62)
Present value of obligation as at the end 2.32 1.97
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Notes forming part'of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Bifurcation of net liability

Particulars As on
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Current liability (short term) - E
Non-current liability (long term) (2.91) (8.58)
Net liability (2.91) (8.58)
Changes in the fair value of plan assets
Particulars For the year ending
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning 10.55 13.49
Investment income 0.73 0.92
Iimployer's contribution
Iimployec's contribution - =
Benefits paid (5.49) (3.62)
Retumn on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense (0.58) (0.25)
Acquisition adjustment
Fair value of plan assets as at the end 5.22 10.55
Expenses recognised in the income statement
Particulars For the year ending
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Current service cost 0.36 0.25
Past service cost =
loss / (gain) on scttlement = .
Net interest cost / (income) on the net defined benefit liability / (assct) (0.60) - 0.62
Expenses recognised in the income statement (0.24) (0.37)
Other comprehensive income
Particulars For the year ending
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Actuarial (gains) / losses
- change in demographic assumptions
- change in financial assumptions (0.06) 0.01)
- experience variance (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) 5.39 0.60
- others
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense 0.58 0.25
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain)/loss arising because of change in effect of assct cciling
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income 5.91 0.84
Financial assumptions
"The principal financial assumptions used in the valuation are shown in the table below:
Particulars As on
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Discount rate (per annum) 7.30% 6.95%
Salary growth race (per annum) 5.00% 5.00%
Demographic assumptions
Particulars As on
; 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Mortality rate (% of IALM 12-14) 100.00% 100.00%
Acttrition rate/ Withdrawal rates 2.00% 2.00%

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuaries. Discount factors are determined close to each year-end by
reference to market yields of high quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to

maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation. Other assumptions arc based on current actus rial henchmarks and management’s

historical expenience.

Gl
Wwoo
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Notes forming part'of the financial seatements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the deternination of the defined benefit obligation are discountrate, expected salary increase and mortality. The
sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while
holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Defined benefit obligation (base) 2.32 1.97

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

Discount rate (- / + 1%) 2.47 2.18 2.10 1.85
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 6.70% -6.10% 6.60% -6.10%
Salary growth rate (- / + 1%) 217 2.47 1.85 2.10
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity -6.20% 6.70% -6.30% 6.70%
Attrition rate (- / + 50%) 2.31 2.33 1.96 1.98
(% change compared to basc duc to scnsitivity) -0.40% 0.30% -0.40% 0.40%
Mortality rate (- / + 10%) 2.32 2.32 1.97 1.97
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%u 0.00%

Please note that the sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that
the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of onc another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

There is no change in the method of valuation for the prior period. For change in assumptions please refer to section 5 above, where assumptions for prior

period, if applicable, are given.

Maturity analysis

There is no change in the method of valuation for the prior period. For change n assumptions please refer to scetion 5 above, where assumptions for prior

period, if applicable, are given.

lyear 2to5years 6 to10years More than 10 years Total

31 March 2023

Defined benefit obligation (pension and gratuity) 0.07 0.31 2.72 0.84 3.94
Post - employment medical benefits N
Total 0.07 0.31 2.72 0.84 3.94
31 March 2022

Defined benefit obligation (pension and gratuity) 0.06 0.27 2.60 0.24 3.17
Post - employment medical benefits = -
Total 0.06 0.27 2.60 0.24 3.17
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

Note 38 : Segment reporting

Business segments:

The primary reporting of the Company has been performed on the basis of busincss segment. Segments have been identified and reported based on the
naturc of the products, the risks and returns, the organization structure and the internal financial reporting systems.

The Company startegic steering committee consists of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer and the manager of corporate planning which
examines the Company's performance both from product and geographical perspective.

I'or management purposes, the Company is organised into business units based on its products and services and has three reportable segments, as follows:

(i) Municipal Solid Waste (MSW)

(ii) Power generation projects (PGP’

(itf) Others represents trading of goods

The steering committee primarily uses a measure of adjusted carnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation to assess the performance of
operating segments. [ Towever steering committtee also reccives the information abot segment revenue and segment assets on monthly basis.

For the year ended March 31, 2023

. Power
e ps ol gen::::tion Others Total

waste projects
Revenue
Segment revenue - - - -
Other income 3,562.91 - - 3,562.91
Total segment revenue 3,562.91 - - 3,562.91
Segment cost 980.94 - - 980.94
Interest income 350.59 - - 350.59
Financial expense 1,490.96 - - 1,490.96
Segment operating profit 1,441.60 - - 1,441.60
Segment assets 21,842.20 15,134.26 - 36,976.47
Unallocable corporate assets - - 8,222.97
Total assets 21,842.20 15,134.26 - 45,199.43
Segment liabilities 35,404.42 283.87 - 35,688.28
Unallocable corporate liabilitics - - 9,511.15
Total liabilities 35,404.42 283.87 - 45,199.43

3
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For the year ended March 31, 2022
t
naEpsllel geiZZ:ion Others Total
e projects
Revenue
Segment revenue -
Other income 12.90 12.90
Total segment revenue 12.90 - - 12.90
Segment cost 992.84 992.84
Interest income 842.08 842.08
Financial expense 1,925.75 1,925.75
Segment operating profit (2,063.61) - - (2,063.61)
Segment assets 22,825.71 15,134.26 37,959.98
Unallocable corporate assets 7,872.78
Total assets 22,825.71 15,134.26 - 45,832.76
Segment liabilities 38,417.51 283.87 38,701.38
Unallocable corporate liabilities - 7,131.38
Total liabilities 38,417.51 283.87 - 45,832.76
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39

Unhedged foreign currency exposure

The detail of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at March 31, 2023 are as under:

Amount in

Exchange rate as on

Particulars Amount in INR Lakhs Foreign Currency March 31, 2023
currency
Toreign currency in hand 0.18 220 usDh 1USD 8221
Foreign currency in hand 0.12 130 1EURO 1 EURO 89.307
Forcign currency in hand 0.09 753 RMB 1 RMB 11.964
[Foreign currency in hand 0.20 875 ALD 1 AED 2237
Foreign currency in hand 0.08 356 RIYAL 1RIYAL 21.9011
Foreign currency in hand 0.26 260 GBP 1 GBP 101.328
The detail of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at March 31, 2022 are as under:
. . Amou'nt in Exchange rate as on
Particulars Amount in INR Lakhs Foreign Currency March 31, 2022
currency
Ioreign currency m hand 0.17 220 usD 1 USD 75.7888
Foreign currency in hand 0.1 130 EURO 1 EURO 82.8005
IForeign currency in hand 0.08 753 RMB 1 RMB 10.641
T'oreign currency in hand 0.18 875 ALLD 1 AED 20.536
Toreign currency in hand 0.07 356 RIYAL 1 RIYAL 19.88975
Iforeign currency in hand 0.24 260 GBP 1 GBP 93.5122

40  Operating Leases
Company as a Lessce

‘I'he Company has entered into various short-term cancellable lease agreements at a notice period up to three months for leased premises and
cquipment. Gross rental expenses aggregate to Rs 34.40 lacs (Previous year — Rs 35.72 lacs).

41  Other statutory information

2) I'he Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
benami property.

b) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

¢) During the current year, Company has not advanced or loancd or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ics), including foreign cntitics
(Intermediarics) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate
bencficiaries) ot

(i) provide any guarantce, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

d) During the current year, Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultumate

(if) provide any guarantee, sceurity or the like on behalf of the ultimate bencficiaries.

¢) Ihe Company does not have :my such transaction \vhich is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surr(.ndcrcd or disclosed as incomc

Act, 1961.

f) 'The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companics (Restriction on

number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

) The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by and bank or financials institution or lender during the year.

h) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.During the period

pany y [ b/ &1 ] yp g the p

under review Yes Bank Limited has modified its charged in favour of JC Flowers Asset Reconstruction Private Limited.

1) The title dccdb of all the 1rnmovablc propcrues (othcr than 1mrnovablc propumcs wherc the Company is the leasee and the lease agreements are
; ﬂ;‘llﬂ.] \.J_uk -in progress

1) The Company does not h a.g M.
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B (Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are in INR Lacs)

42  Contingent liabilities and commitments

a. Contingent liabilities

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt

Guarantees

43  Authorisation of financial statements

4,200.00 4,200.00

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (including comparatives) were approved by the board of directors on 18th May, 2023.

For M P Gupta & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
e, o, (060D2N

Mata Prasad
Partner
M.No. 509623

Place : Gurugram
Date: 18.05.2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

P

Surender Singh Deepak
Director Director
(DIN: 07713768) _ (DIN: 09456137)
o
\( @
L
o /
Sanju Naveen Agarwal

Company Secretary  Cfiet Financul Officer Chief Executive Officer




